
 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend committee meetings. However, occasionally, committees 
may have to consider some business in private. Copies of agendas, minutes and reports are available 
on request in Braille, in large print, on audio tape, on computer disk or in other languages. 

 

 
 

Digital Inclusion in Education  
Task and Finish Group 

Agenda 
 
Monday, 5 July 2021 
5.00 pm, Remote - Via Microsoft Teams - the public are welcome to observe 
via the Council's website at https://lewisham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 
 
For more information contact: John Bardens (02083149976) 
 
This meeting is an open meeting and all items on the agenda may be audio 
recorded and/or filmed. 
 
 

Part 1 
 
Item  Pages 

 
1.   Confirmation of Chair 

 
1 - 4 

2.   Declarations of interest 
 

5 - 8 

3.   Scoping report 
 

9 - 22 

Public Document Pack



 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend committee meetings. However, occasionally, committees 
may have to consider some business in private. Copies of agendas, minutes and reports are available 
on request in Braille, in large print, on audio tape, on computer disk or in other languages. 

 

Digital Inclusion in Education  
Task and Finish Group 

Members 
 
Members of the committee, listed below, are summoned to attend the meeting 
to be held on Monday, 5 July 2021.  
 
Kim Wright, Chief Executive 

Friday 25 June 2021 
 
  

Members  

Councillor Colin Elliott (Chair)  

Councillor Obajimi Adefiranye  

Councillor Liz Johnston-Franklin  

Councillor Caroline Kalu  

Councillor Paul Maslin  

Clive Caseley PGR (Secondary Schools) 
  

   
 



 

 

 

Digital Inclusion in Education Task & Finish Group 

 

1 Summary 

1.1. On 26 May 2021 the Overview and Scrutiny Committee considered a report setting out 
the appointment of three time-limited scrutiny task and finish groups (TFGs) and the 
membership of each of these. 

1.2. The agreed membership of the digital inclusion in education TFG is as follows: 

 Cllr Colin Elliot (Chair)  

 Cllr Paul Maslin  

 Cllr Jimi Adefiranye  

 Cllr Liz Johnston-Franklin  

 Cllr Caroline Kalu  

 Clive Caseley (Secondary School Parent Governor Representative) 
 
 
 

Confirmation of Chair of the Digital Inclusion in Education Task & 
Finish Group (TFG) 

Date: 5 July 2021 

Key decision: No 

Class: Part 1  

Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Assistant Chief Executive (Scrutiny Manager) 

Outline and recommendations 

Further to the Annual General Meeting of Council and the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on 26 May 2021, this report informs the task and finish group (TFG) of the 
appointment of a Chair of the Digital Inclusion in Education Task & Finish Group. 

 Members are advised to:  

 Confirm the election of Councillor Colin Elliott as Chair of the TFG. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

2. Recommendation 

2.1. The task and finish group is recommended to: 

(i) Confirm the election of Councillor Colin Elliott as Chair of the TFG. 
 

3. Policy Context 

3.1. The Council’s Corporate Strategy (2018-2022) outlines the Council’s vision to deliver for 
residents over the next four years. Delivering this strategy includes the following priority 
outcomes that relate to digital inclusion in education: 

 Giving children and young people the best start in life - Every child has access to an 
outstanding and inspiring education, and is given the support they need to keep them 
safe, well and able to achieve their full potential.  

 Building an inclusive local economy - Everyone can access high-quality job 
opportunities, with decent pay and security in our thriving and inclusive local 
economy. 

3.2. The Council’s Covid-19 Recovery Plan, Future Lewisham, also outlines four strategic 
themes: An economically sound future; a healthy and well future; a greener future; and 
a future we all have a part in. The first of these is particularly relevant to digital inclusion 
in education: 

 An economically sound future: We are working to get the borough back in business, 
with a future where everyone has the jobs and skills they need to get the best that 
London has to offer. We are a borough with businesses that are adaptable and 
prepared for change, a thriving local economy that sees 'local' as the first and best 
choice, with digital inclusion at the heart of our plans. We do all we can to support 
residents into jobs that pay fairly and provide families with the opportunities and 
security they deserve 

4. Task and Finish Groups  

4.1. As a result of the Local Democracy Review, the Local Democracy Working Group 
recommended some changes to the Council’s practice and approach to scrutiny, 
including the introduction of time limited Task and Finish Groups (TFGs) to look at topical 
issues of importance or concern. Most of the practice changes were put into practice 
during the 2021/22 municipal year, apart from the introduction of TFGs. This was put on 
hold due to the pandemic. It is now proposed to establish three TFGs.  

4.2. It has been agreed that:  

 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will agree which TFGs should be 
established and their duration; but TFGs will not last longer than 12 months.  

 Each TFG will meet at least twice in public (one meeting to scope out the work 
required and one to agree a final report and recommendations).  

 Evidence will be collected in between formal meetings in a variety of ways. 
Methods will include, but will not be limited to, desktop research, telephone/MS 
Teams conferences, site visits, good practice visits and a wide range of 

Page 2

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

engagement activities. Some evidence may be collected at a formal, public meeting 
of the TFG where expert witnesses are asked to give evidence.  

 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will agree the membership of TFGs on the 
basis of political party nominations. The membership will be politically 
proportionate.  

 Each TFG will have five members. However, the membership of any TFG looking 
at education matters will be open to the statutory parent governor and diocesan 
representatives, who can choose to sit on the group (as full members with voting 
rights) if they wish. Such TFGS will therefore have more than 5 members.  

 TFGs are effectively time limited Select Committees with the same constitutional 
powers as standing Select Committees. This includes the power to make reports to 
the Executive.  

 The TFG will conduct an investigation into the issue it was established to scrutinise, 
agree a report on the basis of the evidence heard and report directly to Mayor and 
Cabinet / the relevant external organisation for a response within two months.  

 TFGs will focus on producing a small number of focused, evidence-based 
recommendations.  

 A copy of each TFG’s final report will be circulated by email to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to note, and the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny may suggest 
that the report is presented to full Council to allow for wider debate, in addition to it 
being considered by the Mayor and Cabinet for an executive response1 .  

 The TFG will be disbanded once it has made its final report. Its final set of minutes 
will go to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for agreement.  

 The Mayoral response to the TFG will be considered by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. The relevant TFG Members will be invited to lead the discussion on the 
response. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee may request an update on the 
implementation of agreed recommendations in six or 12 months’ time to itself or an 
appropriate Select Committee. 

5. Financial implications  

5.1. Scrutiny work is managed within existing budgets. Formal recommendations to the 
Mayor arising out of any TFG investigations; specific work items within select 
committee work programmes; or items considered by the full Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee are evaluated in the usual way through the process of formal reports. There 
are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 

6. Legal implications 

6.1. The Council’s Constitution provides at paragraph 6.11, Article 6 that the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee may from time to time appoint sub-committees, to be known as 
task and finish groups which will exist for a period of no less than 3 months, nor more 
than 12 months from the date of their creation. It further adds that “Any task and finish 
group shall consist of 5 members and be established for the purpose of examining a 
particular issue in depth. The terms of reference of any task and finish group shall be 
agreed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee which shall also appoint members to 
it.” 

7. Equalities implications 

7.1. Equality Act 2010 brought together all previous equality legislation in England, 
Scotland and Wales. The Act included a new public sector equality duty, replacing the 
separate duties relating to race, disability and gender equality. The duty came into 

Page 3

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

force on 6 April 2011. It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age, 
disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

7.2. The Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to: 

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct 
prohibited by the Act 

 advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not. 

8. Climate change and environmental implications 

8.1. There are no direct climate change or environmental implications arising from the 
implementation of the recommendation in this report. 

9. Crime and disorder implications 

9.1. There are no direct crime and disorder implications arising from the implementation of 
the recommendation in this report. 

10. Health and wellbeing implications  

10.1. There are no direct health and wellbeing implications arising from the implementation 
of the recommendation in this report. 

11. Background papers 

11.1. Agenda for Overview and Scrutiny Committee AGM – 26 May 2021 

12. Report contact 

12.1. If you have any questions about this report please contact John Bardens or Timothy 
Andrew: 

John.Bardens@lewisham.gov.uk (02083149976) 

Timothy.Andrew@lewisham.gov.uk (02083147916) 

 

Page 4

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
https://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=119&MId=6531
https://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=119&MId=6531
mailto:John.Bardens@lewisham.gov.uk
mailto:Timothy.Andrew@lewisham.gov.uk


 

 

Digital Inclusion in Education Task & Finish Group 

 

1. Summary 

1.1. Members must declare any personal interest they have in any item on the agenda. There 
are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’s Member Code of 
Conduct: 

(1)  Disclosable pecuniary interests 

(2)  Other registerable interests 

(3)  Non-registerable interests. 

1.2. Further information on these is provided in the body of this report. 

2. Recommendation 

2.1. Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the 
agenda. 

Declarations of Interest 

Key decision: No  

Class: Part 1  

Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Chief Executive (Director of Law) 

Outline and recommendations 

Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the agenda. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



  

3. Disclosable pecuniary interests  

3.1 These are defined by regulation as: 

(a) Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for profit or gain 

(b) Sponsorship –payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than by the 
Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for inclusion in the register in 
respect of expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member or towards 
your election expenses (including payment or financial benefit  from a Trade 
Union). 

(c) Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which they are a 
partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of 
which they have a beneficial interest) and the Council for goods, services or works. 

(d)  Beneficial interests in land in the borough. 

(e)  Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more. 

(f)   Corporate tenancies – any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge, the 
Council is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant person* is a 
partner, a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of which 
they have a beneficial interest.   

(g)   Beneficial interest in securities of a body where: 

(a)  that body to the member’s knowledge has a place of business or land in the 
borough; and  

(b)  either: 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 1/100 of the 
total issued share capital of that body; or 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant person* 
has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 of the total issued share capital of 
that class. 

*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a person 
with whom they live as spouse or civil partner.  

4. Other registerable interests 

4.1 The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to register the following 
interests: 

(a) Membership or position of control or management in a body to which you were 
appointed or nominated by the Council 

(b) Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to charitable 
purposes, or whose principal purposes include the influence of public opinion or 
policy, including any political party 

(c) Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 
value of at least £25. 

Page 6



  

5. Non registerable interests 

5.1. Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or would be likely to 
affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend or close associate more than it 
would affect the wellbeing of those in the local area generally, but which is not required 
to be registered in the Register of Members’ Interests (for example a matter concerning 
the closure of a school at which a Member’s child attends).  

6. Declaration and impact of interest on members’ participation 

6.1. Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and they are present at a 
meeting at which that matter is to be discussed, they must declare the nature of the 
interest at the earliest opportunity and in any event before the matter is considered. The 
declaration will be recorded in the minutes of the meeting. If the matter is a disclosable 
pecuniary interest the member must take not part in consideration of the matter and 
withdraw from the room before it is considered. They must not seek improperly to 
influence the decision in any way. Failure to declare such an interest which has not 
already been entered in the Register of Members’ Interests, or participation where 
such an interest exists, is liable to prosecution and on conviction carries a fine of 
up to £5000  
 

6.2. Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a disclosable pecuniary 
interest they must still declare the nature of the interest to the meeting at the earliest 
opportunity and in any event before the matter is considered, but they may stay in the 
room, participate in consideration of the matter and vote on it unless paragraph 6.3 
below applies. 

6.3. Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a disclosable pecuniary 
interest, the member must consider whether a reasonable member of the public in 
possession of the facts would think that their interest is so significant that it would be 
likely to impair the member’s judgement of the public interest. If so, the member must 
withdraw and take no part in consideration of the matter nor seek to influence the 
outcome improperly. 

6.4. If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing of a member, their, 
family, friend or close associate more than it would affect those in the local area 
generally, then the provisions relating to the declarations of interest and withdrawal apply 
as if it were a registerable interest.   

6.5. Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the member’s personal judgement, 
though in cases of doubt they may wish to seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer. 

7. Sensitive information  

7.1. There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests. These are interests the 
disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member to risk of violence or 
intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has agreed that such interest need not be 
registered. Members with such an interest are referred to the Code and advised to seek 
advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance. 

8.  Exempt categories 

8.1. There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to participate in decisions 
notwithstanding interests that would otherwise prevent them doing so. These include:- 

(a) Housing – holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the matter relates 
to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears exception) 

(b)  School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a parent or 

Page 7



  

guardian of a child in full time education, or a school governor unless the matter 
relates particularly to the school your child attends or of which you are a 
governor 

(c)   Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt 

(d)   Allowances, payment or indemnity for members  

(e)  Ceremonial honours for members 

(f)   Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception). 

9. Report author and contact 

9.1. Suki Binjal, Director of Law, Governance and HR, 0208 31 47648 

Page 8



 

 

 

Digital Inclusion in Education Task & Finish Group (TFG) 

 

 

Timeline of engagement and decision-making 

The subject of this TFG was proposed by Cllr Colin Elliott. 

The subject and membership of the TFG were agreed by Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
on 26 May 2021.  

 

 

 

Report title: Digital Inclusion in Education TFG – scoping report  

Date: 5 July 2021 

Key decision: No.  

Class: Part 1  

Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Assistant Chief Executive (Scrutiny Manager) 

Outline and recommendations 

This report defines the role of the Task and Finish Group (TFG), and defines the scope of 
the review. 

 The TFG is asked to: 

 consider and comment on the content of the report 

 define the intended outcomes of the review 

 agree key lines of enquiry 

 agree a timetable for completion of this work. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

1. Summary 

1.1. This report asks the TFG to consider and finalise the scope of the review. 

2. Recommendations 

2.1. The TFG is asked to:  

 Consider and comment on the content of the report. 

 define the intended outcomes of the review 

 Agree Key Lines of Enquiry 

 Agree a timetable for the completion of this work 

3. The role of the Task & Finish Group 

3.1. The proposed role of the Digital Inclusion in Education TFG is to consider: 

 How can levels of digital inclusion be improved for those pupils most in need, and 
educational outcomes improved, particularly for those already identified as under-
achieving prior to the COVID-19 pandemic? 

 What best practice has emerged during the pandemic to support pupils who may be 
digitally excluded and are likely to need to complete more online learning at home in 
the future? 

 How can those most in need be identified and how should best practice on digital 
inclusion be shared, applied and evaluated as part of the recovery from the 
pandemic?  

3.2. These are based on the proforma for the TFG, which can be found at Appendix A.  

4. Policy content 

4.1. The Council’s Corporate Strategy (2018-2022) outlines the Council’s vision to deliver for 
residents over the next four years. Delivering this strategy includes the following priority 
outcomes that relate to digital inclusion in education: 

 Giving children and young people the best start in life - Every child has access to an 
outstanding and inspiring education, and is given the support they need to keep them 
safe, well and able to achieve their full potential.  

 Building an inclusive local economy - Everyone can access high-quality job 
opportunities, with decent pay and security in our thriving and inclusive local 
economy. 

4.2. The Council’s Covid-19 Recovery Plan, Future Lewisham, also outlines four strategic 
themes: An economically sound future; a healthy and well future; a greener future; and 
a future we all have a part in. The first of these is particularly relevant to digital inclusion 
in education: 

 An economically sound future: We are working to get the borough back in business, 
with a future where everyone has the jobs and skills they need to get the best that 
London has to offer. We are a borough with businesses that are adaptable and 
prepared for change, a thriving local economy that sees 'local' as the first and best 
choice, with digital inclusion at the heart of our plans. We do all we can to support 
residents into jobs that pay fairly and provide families with the opportunities and 
security they deserve 

Page 10

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

4.3. The Council’s Children and young people's plan 2019–2022 sits within the wider 
framework of Council priorities. This also includes the following priorities that are relevant 
to increasing digital inclusion in education: 

 Priority 1: Children and young people have the best start in life and are protected 
from harm  

 Priority 3: Children and young people develop, achieve and are ready for adulthood  

5. Digital inclusion – a brief introduction 

5.1. In a recent analysis of data on digital inclusion, the Office for National Statistics (ONS) 
noted that: ‘in an increasingly digital age, those who are not engaging effectively with the 
digital world are at risk of being left behind’.  

5.2. The ONS observed that technological change means that digital skills are increasingly 
important for connecting with others, accessing information and services and meeting 
the changing demands of the workplace and economy; and that this is leading to a digital 
divide between those who have access to information and communications technology 
and those who do not.1 

5.3. The Good Things Foundation, a leading digital inclusion charity, argue that a lack of 
digital skills and access can have a huge negative impact on a person’s life, leading to 
poorer health outcomes and a lower life expectancy, increased loneliness and social 
isolation, less access to jobs and education. It can also mean paying more for essentials 
and lead to broader financial exclusion. 

5.4. Worryingly, the Good Things Foundation also points out that it tends to be those already 
at a disadvantage – through age, education, income, disability, or unemployment – who 
are most likely to be lacking digital skills, further widening the social inequality gap.2 

5.5. Concerns about a ‘digital divide’ have been particularly acute during the COVID-19 
pandemic as the internet and digital devices have played an important role in allowing 
people to attend medical appointments, stay in touch with friends and family, and take 
part in education. 

5.6. The 2020 UK Consumer Digital Index, an annual survey of around 4,000 people, 
estimated that there are 11.3 million people in the UK who don’t have the basic digital 
skills they need to thrive in today’s world. 

5.7. Research has also established that children and young people are likely to experience 
an educational disadvantage in not being able access the internet for schoolwork.3 

5.8. The closure of schools during the pandemic to control the spread of COVID-19 
concentrated attention on the issue of digital inequality in education as teaching rapidly 
shifted online. While many children could continue learning remotely, many were unable 
to access learning resources as they lacked a suitable device or a reliable internet 
connection. 

5.9. Recent research from Ofcom, for example, found that 20% of children did not always 
have access to a device for online learning while schools were closed.4 

5.10. Similarly, a survey of more than 6,000 teachers in January 2021 found that, overall, just 
10% of teachers said that all their students had access to an adequate device and the 

                                                

1 ONS, Exploring the UK’s digital divide, March 2019 
2 Good Things Foundation, The Digital Divide (webpage), undated 
3 Digital Access for All, Switched On: Exploring the challenge of adequate digital access for all children 
and young people, 2019 
4 Lloyds Bank, UK Consumer Digital Index 2021, May 2021 (cited at p14)  

Page 11

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
https://lewisham.gov.uk/-/media/files/imported/lewishamchildrenandyoungpeoplesplan20192022.ashx
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/householdcharacteristics/homeinternetandsocialmediausage/articles/exploringtheuksdigitaldivide/2019-03-04
https://www.goodthingsfoundation.org/the-digital-divide/
https://www.carnegieuktrust.org.uk/publications/switched-on/
https://www.carnegieuktrust.org.uk/publications/switched-on/
https://www.lloydsbank.com/banking-with-us/whats-happening/consumer-digital-index.html


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

internet. In the most deprived schools only 2% of teachers reported all their students as 
having access to an adequate device, and only 1% said all students had access to the 
internet (see charts below).5 

5.11. The chart below shows the lack a devices by deprivation level. 

 

5.12. This chart shows the lack of internet access by deprivation level. 

 

5.13. An Ofcom survey in March 2020 estimated that 9% of households containing children 
didn’t have home access to a laptop, desktop PC or tablet.6 And Digital Access For All 
(DAFA), a taskforce focused on digital inclusion among children and young people, 
estimates that 1 million children have inadequate access at home.7 

5.14. DAFA also points out that those children most likely to be digitally excluded are also 
those children most likely to be disadvantaged according to almost every other social or 

                                                

5 The Sutton Trust, Remote Learning: the Digital Divide, January 2021 
6 The Parliamentary Office of Science and Technology (POST), COVID-19 and the digital divide, 
December 2020 
7 Nominet, Digital Access for All launches to help solve problem of digital exclusion (webpage), 
February 2019 

Page 12

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
https://www.suttontrust.com/our-research/remote-learning-the-digital-divide/
https://post.parliament.uk/covid-19-and-the-digital-divide/
https://www.nominet.uk/digital-access-for-all-launches-to-help-solve-problem-of-digital-exclusion/


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

economic measure, the children for whom a positive education experience can make the 
greatest difference.8  

5.15. A 2020 University College London study estimated that 20% of children eligible for free 
school meals have no access to a computer at home – compared to 7% of other 
children.9 And according to ONS data, only 51% of households earning £6-10k have 
internet – compared to 99% of households earning more than £40K.10 

5.16. DAFA research notes that although the most vulnerable children were able to continue 
attending school during the pandemic, there remains a wider disadvantaged group at 
risk of a significant increase in the inequality of their educational experience.11 

5.17. The Education Endowment Foundation (EEF), the government-designated What Works 
Centre for improving education outcomes for school-aged children, estimates that the 
attainment gap between poorer pupils and their richer peers widened during the first 
lockdown, reversing progress made to narrow the gap since 2011. The EEF’s median 
estimate indicates that the gap could widen by 36%.12 

5.18. A recent study of digital inclusion by the University of Manchester commented that the 
pandemic is reducing the equalising role that the time children normally spend in school 
may have on their learning.13 An analysis from the University of Cambridge said that the 
pandemic risks turning the problem of digital exclusion into a catastrophe of lost 
education and opportunity for the UK’s poorest and most vulnerable.14  

5.19. The Sutton Trust, also the government-designated What Works Centre for improving 
education outcomes for school-aged children, said that the lack of access to electronic 
devices to help children participate in remote lessons and complete homework threatens 
to undo a decade of social mobility.15 

5.20. Studies of digital inclusion have identified a wide range of barriers holding people back 
from making full use of the internet and other digital tools. DAFA argue that access to a 
suitable device and internet connection and the skills to make effective use of these are 
essential if children are to access and benefit from digitally-delivered educational 
resources and teaching.16 DAFA also warns against assuming that children and young 
people are ‘digital natives’ surrounded by technology, pointing out that there remains a 
substantial group of children and young people who are disconnected.17 

5.21. A comprehensive review of digital access for children and young people by DAFA noted, 
however, that digital inclusion is a complex picture with considerations that go far beyond 
access to a digital device and the internet. As well as access to a suitable and affordable 
device and an internet connection, the review stated that adequate access should also 
mean that children and young people have the ‘confidence, skills and motivation’ they 

                                                

8 Digital Access for All, Switched On: Exploring the challenge of adequate digital access for all children 
and young people, 2019 (p9) 
9 Cited in Education Policy Institute, Addressing the digital divide in education: Enabling a blended 
learning approach for all pupils and teachers, July 2020  
10 ONS, Exploring the UK’s digital divide, March 2019 
11 Digital Access for All, Time for a rapid response to the digital access challenge (webpage), April 2020 
12 Education Endowment Foundation (EFF), Impact of school closures on the attainment gap: Rapid 
Evidence Assessment, June 2020 (p4) 
13 University of Manchester, On Digital Inequalities, May 2021 (p37) 
14 University of Cambridge, "Pay the wi-fi or feed the children": Coronavirus has intensified the UK’s 
digital divide (webpage), undated 
15 Digital divide: The initiatives working to provide deprived children with laptops, INews, 12 February 
2021  
16 Digital Access for All, Time for a rapid response to the digital access challenge (webpage), April 2020 
17 Digital Access for All, Switched On: Exploring the challenge of adequate digital access for all children 
and young people, 2019 (p9) 

Page 13

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
https://www.carnegieuktrust.org.uk/publications/switched-on/
https://www.carnegieuktrust.org.uk/publications/switched-on/
https://epi.org.uk/publications-and-research/paper-addressing-the-digital-divide-in-education/
https://epi.org.uk/publications-and-research/paper-addressing-the-digital-divide-in-education/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/householdcharacteristics/homeinternetandsocialmediausage/articles/exploringtheuksdigitaldivide/2019-03-04
https://digitalaccessforall.co.uk/whatweareupto/2020/4/2/time-for-a-rapid-response-to-the-digital-access-challenge
https://educationendowmentfoundation.org.uk/public/files/EEF_(2020)_-_Impact_of_School_Closures_on_the_Attainment_Gap.pdf
https://educationendowmentfoundation.org.uk/public/files/EEF_(2020)_-_Impact_of_School_Closures_on_the_Attainment_Gap.pdf
https://www.policy.manchester.ac.uk/publications/on-digital-inequalities/?s=09
https://www.cam.ac.uk/stories/digitaldivide
https://www.cam.ac.uk/stories/digitaldivide
https://inews.co.uk/news/technology/digital-divide-initiatives-working-provide-deprived-children-laptops-869560
https://digitalaccessforall.co.uk/whatweareupto/2020/4/2/time-for-a-rapid-response-to-the-digital-access-challenge
https://www.carnegieuktrust.org.uk/publications/switched-on/
https://www.carnegieuktrust.org.uk/publications/switched-on/


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

need to navigate effectively and safely.18 

5.22. DAFA states that the absence of digital skills among some children can mean that their 
digital use is concentrated on activities such as messaging or gaming rather than broader 
access to education and learning resources that is now being asked of them.19 DAFA 
also draws attention to more subtle barriers such as the number of people sharing a 
device and how much data a family has for a month.20 The Educational Development 
Trust points out that lack of access to software can also influence digital inclusion.21 

5.23. In addition to this, some children are limited to accessing the internet with a smartphone, 
often restricting them to a narrow set of tools and resources, DAFA notes.22 Research 
from the Institute of Fiscal Studies in 2020 found that 14% of pupils were dependent on 
their phone for accessing digital content.23 And Ofcom research found that smartphone-
only access was 9x more likely in DE than AB households.24 

5.24. Given the significant number of children and young people currently without decent 
access researchers have also been considering ways of mitigating the impact of the of 
the digital divide on children’s learning.  

5.25. The Educational Development Trust (EDT), for example, created an Essential Guide to 
Remote Learning for schools in which schools are first encouraged to speak to parents 
to find out more about what devices a child will be able to use. The guide notes that 
knowing whether or not the child will have access to an internet-enabled device (whether 
this is a computer, tablet or phone, and whether it is available for only brief periods) 
allows schools to plan for how to reach each of their pupils.25 

5.26. The EDT suggests that schools will need to work out strategies to support families with 
different levels of digital access and capability – both in terms of how they communicate 
and in the remote learning activities they set. The EDT also suggests that teachers 
should carefully consider the potential of ‘low-bandwidth, lower-immediacy alternatives 
to online video classes, such as file-sharing (for readings), email and discussion boards, 
which – used effectively – can create excellent learning experiences’.26 

5.27. Research on digital inclusion in education by the University of Manchester found that 
supporting parents with online learning has been a key priority for many schools in 
Greater Manchester – with some providing step-by-step guides and telephone support.  

5.28. Since COVID-19 many schools in Greater Manchester have also adopted a ‘blended’ 
learning approach, combining online platforms with paper-based materials. Given that 
providing both face-to-face and online learning may continue for some time, the research 
suggests that policymakers should turn their attention to allowing and supporting schools 
to develop blended learning offers. 27 

                                                

18 Digital Access for All, Switched On: Exploring the challenge of adequate digital access for all children 
and young people, 2019 (pp2,7) 
19 Digital Access for All, Time for a rapid response to the digital access challenge (webpage), April 2020 
20 Digital Access for All (webpage), February 2021 
21 Education Development Trust, Bridging the digital divide: evidence and advice on remote learning 
and digital equality (webpage), May 2020 
22 Digital Access for All, Time for a rapid response to the digital access challenge (webpage), April 2020 
23 Cited in Education Policy Institute, Addressing the digital divide in education: Enabling a blended 
learning approach for all pupils and teachers, July 2020 
24 Cited in Good Things Foundation, Digital Nation UK 2020, 2020 
25 Education Development Trust, Bridging the digital divide: evidence and advice on remote learning 
and digital equality (webpage), May 2020 
 
26 Ibid.  
27 University of Manchester, On Digital Inequalities, May 2021 (pp37-8) 

Page 14

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
https://londonclc.org.uk/remote-learning/
https://londonclc.org.uk/remote-learning/
https://www.carnegieuktrust.org.uk/publications/switched-on/
https://www.carnegieuktrust.org.uk/publications/switched-on/
https://digitalaccessforall.co.uk/whatweareupto/2020/4/2/time-for-a-rapid-response-to-the-digital-access-challenge
https://digitalaccessforall.co.uk/
https://www.educationdevelopmenttrust.com/our-research-and-insights/commentary/bridging-the-digital-divide-evidence-and-advice-on
https://www.educationdevelopmenttrust.com/our-research-and-insights/commentary/bridging-the-digital-divide-evidence-and-advice-on
https://digitalaccessforall.co.uk/whatweareupto/2020/4/2/time-for-a-rapid-response-to-the-digital-access-challenge
https://epi.org.uk/publications-and-research/paper-addressing-the-digital-divide-in-education/
https://epi.org.uk/publications-and-research/paper-addressing-the-digital-divide-in-education/
https://www.goodthingsfoundation.org/insights/building-a-digital-nation/
https://www.educationdevelopmenttrust.com/our-research-and-insights/commentary/bridging-the-digital-divide-evidence-and-advice-on
https://www.educationdevelopmenttrust.com/our-research-and-insights/commentary/bridging-the-digital-divide-evidence-and-advice-on
https://www.policy.manchester.ac.uk/publications/on-digital-inequalities/?s=09


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

5.29. The Manchester research also considered the needs of teachers and argued that 
bridging the digital divide between teachers, to ensure they are appropriately trained and 
confident in developing digital education, should also be a key priority.28 

5.30. Other research into digital inclusion has established the importance of upskilling  project 
workers working with young people and starting the digital inclusion process with trusted 
relationships and a shared understanding of why digital is relevant.29 While analysis from 
the University of Cambridge raised the issue of parents not having key digital skills 
themselves, and not being able to help their children use the most appropriate learning 
platforms.30 

6. Local response during the pandemic 

6.1. In response to a public council question in March 2021, Cllr Chris Barnham (Cabinet 
Member for Children's Services and School Performance) outlined the local response 
to digital poverty in education over the course of pandemic, in particular the 
widespread provision of devices: 

For the 2020 to 2021 academic year, DfE has been providing laptops and tablets to 
schools to help children, young people and families in need to access remote 
education during coronavirus (COVID-19). Devices have been made available for 
disadvantaged children in certain year groups who: 

 are affected by disruption to face-to-face education at their school 
 have been advised to shield because they are clinically extremely vulnerable.  

There has been two phases to the digital device allocation to Lewisham education 
providers, children and young people.   

During lockdown one, between April and July 2020, Lewisham Council worked with 

schools, academies and colleges to distribute to over 1700 digital devices including 

laptops, notebooks and 4G internet connectivity.  All Lewisham education providers 

were involved with the allocation of devices and LBL undertook the role of liaison 

between the Department for Education (DfE) and distribution to Lewisham education 

providers. All those devices were allocated to:  

 Looked after children, care leavers and children with social worker involvement. 

 Disadvantaged Year 10 pupils in maintained schools (this includes voluntary aided 

schools) 

Under the current lockdown Lewisham is expecting more digital devices and the DfE is 

increasing the help available through its ‘get help with technology programme’. 

This includes providing hundreds of thousands more laptops and tablets – reaching a 

total of more than one million and supporting disadvantaged 16 to 19 year olds in 

further education, in particular to:  

 disadvantaged children in years 3 to 11 who do not have access to a device and 

whose face-to-face education is disrupted 

                                                

28 Ibid. 31. 
29 Digital Access for All, Switched On: Exploring the challenge of adequate digital access for all children 
and young people, 2019 (p20) 
30 University of Cambridge, "Pay the wi-fi or feed the children": Coronavirus has intensified the UK’s 
digital divide (webpage), undated 

Page 15

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-on-shielding-and-protecting-extremely-vulnerable-persons-from-covid-19/guidance-on-shielding-and-protecting-extremely-vulnerable-persons-from-covid-19
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/get-help-with-technology-for-remote-education-during-coronavirus-covid-19
https://www.carnegieuktrust.org.uk/publications/switched-on/
https://www.carnegieuktrust.org.uk/publications/switched-on/
https://www.cam.ac.uk/stories/digitaldivide
https://www.cam.ac.uk/stories/digitaldivide


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

 disadvantaged children in any year group who have been advised to shield 

because they (or someone they live with) are clinically extremely vulnerable 

 disadvantaged children in any year group attending a hospital school 

This offer applies to maintained schools, pupil referral units, academy trusts and 

hospital schools, as well as sixth-form colleges who have enrolled 14 to 16 year olds. 

We are aware that the DfE is in direct contact schools, colleges, trusts and local 
authorities when they’re able to order these devices during the spring term 2021.  This 
is already happening for Lewisham education providers with over 2750 laptops and 
notebooks ordered and /or delivered. There is still a small number of devices 
unclaimed and Lewisham education is following up with schools to ensure access to all 
available devices.  

Lewisham education is currently in dialogue with the DfE ‘get help with technology 
programme’ to ensure that children and young people who attend alternative provision 
and 14-16 provision at Lewisham College are not digitally disadvantaged during this 
lockdown. 

6.2. The council question response also outlined the most recent analysis of the ongoing 
digital inclusion challenges and plans to address these going forwards: 

More recently Lewisham Learning undertook a survey with Lewisham primary, 
secondary and special schools and it is estimated that 99 per cent of children now 
have access to a device but there is still significant inequality between families. Some 
children have a laptop or desktop for their own exclusive use while other children are 
sharing a mobile phone with parents and siblings. The quality of Wi-Fi / connectivity 
varies greatly between families as does the appropriateness of the space and 
environment children from different families are working in.  

In order to further support this Lewisham Learning has set up a crowd funding page to 
raise financial resource for schools to purchase additional digital devices and 
connectivity for the most vulnerable children and families. 

Lewisham Learning is also working with Lewisham schools to improve remote learning 
by encouraging:  

 Schools to support each other by providing coaching and modelling good practice 
where needed. 

 Compliance checks on school websites to ensure Lewisham schools are meeting 
new remote learning Department for Education requirements. 

 School / peer review teams to use the new Department for Education toolkit to 
evaluate the quality of schools offers. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 16

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-on-shielding-and-protecting-extremely-vulnerable-persons-from-covid-19/guidance-on-shielding-and-protecting-extremely-vulnerable-persons-from-covid-19
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/get-help-with-technology-for-remote-education-during-coronavirus-covid-19


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

7. Task & Finish Group methodology 

7.1. The TFGs will be run as projects, utilising an agile methodology, and are intended to 
be:  

Collaborative – scrutiny officers, directorate officers and councillors working together to 
address a topical issue of concern, using a shared space on MS Teams 

Time limited – to suggest solutions in a timely manner, with allocated tasks, progress 
checks and deadlines 

Flexible – with a mixture of formal and informal meetings, visits, research, user 
engagement etc 

Focussed on residents – service user experience is key, the issue will be clearly 
defined, and solutions suggested, on the basis of understanding residents’ experience 

Focussed on solutions – the aim is to take evidence from a wide range of sources and 
good practice to develop affordable, practical solutions that are evidence based and 
implementable and that will have a positive impact on the lives of residents. 

7.2. A ‘double diamond’ approach will be taken which will split the project into two parts 
(diamonds). The first part is the ‘discovery’ stage. The issue (the topic of the TFG) is 
the starting point and then research and evidence collection is carried out to really 
understand the issue and define it more clearly. Once the issue is well understood and 
well defined, the second stage begins. Further research and evidence collection is 
carried out, seeking inspiration from elsewhere and working with a range of different 
stakeholders and experts to investigate potential solutions. Then a clear set of 
recommendations can be produced. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 17

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

8. Nature of expected outcomes 

8.1. The work of the TFG is intended to support work to improve the following outcomes: 

 More of the pupils most in need in Lewisham are able to access and use the digital 
tools that are necessary for their education. 

 An increased understanding and awareness among schools and local stakeholders 
of local and national best practice in relation to digital inclusion in education. 

 The identification of ways of monitoring levels of digital inclusion among pupils in 
Lewisham, particularly those that have been identified as under-achieving.  

9. Stakeholder engagement 

9.1. It is also proposed that stakeholder engagement begins with the relevant council 
officers in order to gather evidence on the key learning points from the pandemic and 
the ongoing work with schools to address the digital divide going forward. It is proposed 
that this initial engagement takes place in July. 

9.2. It is also proposed that engagement takes place with primary and secondary school 
headteachers. The aims of this engagement would be to better understand schools’ 
experience of digital inclusion during the pandemic; the key issues faced by pupils, 
parents/carers, and teachers; schools’ priorities on digital inclusion/exclusion going 
forwards; and what role the council might play. A initial selection of potential schools to 
engage with has been identified (see table below). It is proposed that this engagement 
takes place around September.  

9.3. It is also proposed that a member of the TFG engages with the council officers 
responsible for the development of two recent virtual offers (relating to voluntary work 
experience and the Lewisham university challenge) in order to report back on these 
examples of recently developed practice. It is proposed that this engagement takes place 
before September.    

9.4. Further engagement by the TFG will be steered by the findings of this initial engagement 
and other suggestions. The TFG may, for example, wish to engage in more detail with 
governors, parents, pupils, other local authorities and other experts in digital inclusion, 
or consider holding an online call for evidence.  

Primary schools Secondary schools 

St Saviour's RC Primary School St Matthew Academy 

St Margaret's Lee CE Primary School Prendergast School 

Brindishe Manor Primary School Sydenham Secondary School 

Rathfern Primary School Sedgehill Secondary School 

Elfrida Primary School Haberdashers' Aske's Knights Academy 

Forster Park Primary School Addey and Stanhope Secondary School 

St Mary's CE Primary School Deptford Green School 

Grinling Gibbons Primary School Forest Hill School 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 18

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
https://lewisham.gov.uk/organizations/st-saviour-s-rc-primary-school
https://lewisham.gov.uk/organizations/st-matthew-academy--year-7-onwards
https://lewisham.gov.uk/organizations/st-margaret-s-lee-ce-primary-school
https://lewisham.gov.uk/organizations/prendergast-school
https://lewisham.gov.uk/organizations/brindishe-manor-primary-school
https://lewisham.gov.uk/organizations/sydenham-secondary-school
https://lewisham.gov.uk/organizations/rathfern-primary-school
https://lewisham.gov.uk/organizations/sedgehill-secondary-school
https://lewisham.gov.uk/organizations/elfrida-primary-school
https://lewisham.gov.uk/organizations/haberdashers--aske-s-knights-academy
https://lewisham.gov.uk/organizations/forster-park-primary-school
https://lewisham.gov.uk/organizations/addey-and-stanhope-secondary-school
https://lewisham.gov.uk/organizations/st-mary-s-ce-primary-school
https://lewisham.gov.uk/organizations/deptford-green-school
https://lewisham.gov.uk/organizations/grinling-gibbons-primary-school
https://lewisham.gov.uk/organizations/forest-hill-school


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

 

10. Key Lines of Enquiry 

10.1. The proposed key lines of enquiry for the TFG are: 

 What are the main barriers to digital inclusion for pupils in Lewisham, both those 
faced during the pandemic and those that are likely to persist going forwards? 

 Which pupils are most likely to be digitally excluded and most likely to experience 
the negative consequences of digital exclusion? 

 What support do pupils need to be digitally included as part of their education, 
particularly those pupils that have been identified as under-achieving? 

 What best practice on digital inclusion in education has emerged, locally and 
nationally, during the pandemic and what lessons were learned? 

 What are the local strategies for increasing digital inclusion among pupils in 
Lewisham?  

 What local and national organisations and campaigns are there that the council could 
work in partnership with to increase digital inclusion? 

 What outcomes do the council and its partners want to achieve from greater digital 
inclusion among pupils in Lewisham? 

11. Out of Scope 

11.1. Neither further or higher education are within scope of this review. 

12. Sources of Evidence 

12.1. A combination of further desk-based research and stakeholder engagement. 

13. Timeframe and resources 

13.1. This is the first formal meeting of the TFG. There will be at least one more formal meeting 
to agree to final report and recommendations – anticipated to be around February 2022. 
Before then there will be a mix of informal and formal meetings as required to gather 
evidence for the review. The intention is for the majority of evidence gathering to take 
place before and after August 2021 with a mid-stage evidence review meeting around 
November 2021. 

14. Financial implications  

14.1. There are no direct financial implications arising from the implementation of the 
recommendations in this report. Elements of the work of the Task and Finish Group may 
have financial implications and these will need to be considered in due course. 

15. Legal implications 

15.1. The Council’s Constitution provides at paragraph 6.11, Article 6 that the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee may from time to time appoint sub-committees, to be known as task 
and finish groups which will exist for a period of no less than 3 months, nor more than 
12 months from the date of their creation.  It further adds that “Any task and finish group 
shall consist of 5 members and be established for the purpose of examining a particular 
issue in depth.  The terms of reference of any task and finish group shall be agreed by 

Page 19

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

the Overview and Scrutiny Committee which shall also appoint members to it.” 

16. Equalities implications 

16.1. The Equality Act 2010 brought together all previous equality legislation in England, 
Scotland and Wales. The Act included a new public sector equality duty, replacing the 
separate duties relating to race, disability and gender equality. The duty came into 
force on 6 April 2011. It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age, 
disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

16.2. The Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to: 

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct 
prohibited by the Act 

 advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not. 

16.3. There may be equalities implications arising from activities undertaken by the Task and 
Finish Group and it will need to give due consideration to this. 

17. Climate change and environmental implications 

17.1. There are no direct climate change or environmental implications arising from the 
implementation of the recommendations in this report. Matters considered by the Task 
and Finish Group may have climate change implications and the Task and Finish 
Group will need to give due consideration to this. 

18. Crime and disorder implications 

18.1. There are no direct crime and disorder implications arising from the implementation of 
the recommendations in this report. Matters considered by the Task and Finish Group 
may have crime and disorder implications and the Task and Finish Group will need to 
give due consideration to this. 

19. Health and wellbeing implications  

19.1. There are no direct health and wellbeing implications arising from the implementation 
of the recommendations in this report. Matters considered by the Task and Finish 
Group may have health and wellbeing implications and the Task and Finish Group will 
need to give due consideration to this. 

20. Report author and contact 

20.1. If you have any questions about this report please contact: John Bardens or Timothy 
Andrew: 

John.Bardens@lewisham.gov.uk (02083149976) 

Timothy.Andrew@lewisham.gov.uk (02083147916) 

 

Appendix A – Task and Finish Group Proforma 

 

Page 20

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
mailto:John.Bardens@lewisham.gov.uk
mailto:Timothy.Andrew@lewisham.gov.uk


Lewisham Labour Group 
Task and Finish Group Proforma 

 

 

Proposed title 
This should be written as a 
question. What is the main 
question that you are looking to 
answer? Ideally use “how” I.e.  
“How can we improve……XXX?” 
 

How can we identify the lack of access to the Wi-Fi network, 
to improve connectivity, along with educational outcomes, for 
those pupils most in need? 

Overview 
Provide 2-3 sentences explaining 
the proposed investigation in 
more detail including the key 
areas that you are proposing to 
look at. 
 

The investigation will identify failings in internet access and 
wifi connectivity relied upon by pupils, particularly those 
already identified as under achieving prior to lockdown due to 
the pandemic, who will need to catch-up via on line learning 
outside of the school environment – mainly at home. 

Reason for proposal 
Why do you think that a task and 
finish group is the most 
appropriate way to address this 
issue / answer this question? 
Where has the suggestion come 
from? (I.e. through resident 
engagement, casework, external 
inspection, performance 
information.) 
 

The Mayor of London has launched a new taskforce to tackle 
the digital divide, and amongst other issues support children 
in need.  He has allocated £1.5m over the next two years for 
this, part of the work will be to map out reliable connectivity 
across London. At a recent Webinar chaired by the Mayor of 
London, it was also mentioned that if there are issues with Wi-
Fi hotspots in individual boroughs to let the taskforce team 
know. Ofcom estimates over 880,000 UK children have only a 
mobile internet connection at home.   
The task and finish group can work alongside schools/officers 
to help identify those households most in need.  This will also 
provide detailed information for targeted pupil support and to 
pass on to the taskforce team, along with specific, up-to-date 
information for inclusion in future applications for external 
funding. 

Policy Context 
How does the proposal support 
delivery of the Lewisham 
Corporate Strategy; 
national/regional policies, 
initiatives; legislation etc. 
 

I believe this proposal will help us identify and better support 
the educational achievements, and outcomes, for those 
Lewisham pupils who will be reliant on a good network 
connection, both now and in the future. In addition to this it will 
support the Level-up agenda aimed at ensuring children get 
guaranteed access to learning. 

Criteria for the investigation 
(Essential) 

 Is the proposed investigation 
timely? Why? 

 Is it a strategic and significant 
issue? How? 

 Is it of concern to one or more 
sections of the population? 
Who? 

 
 

(Desirable) 

This proposal is very timely and coincides with the launch of 
the London Mayor’s task force to tackle the digital divide.  
Moreover, most children have just begun returning to school 
after almost a year being home schooled.  We will need to do 
all we can to support their learning outside of the school 
environment and access to a reliable network service will be 
crucial. 
 
This can only be good for Lewisham schools, parents and 
pupils.  

Page 21



 Is the issue of concern to 
partners or stakeholders? 
How? 

 Will the investigation add 
value in terms of improving 
the council’s or partner’s 
performance or service 
delivery? How? 

 Will the investigation be 
duplicating any other work? 
What? 

 What control or influence 
does the Council have in this 
area? 

 

Sources of evidence 
Do you have any thoughts/ideas 
on where you might gather 
evidence from? e.g. research or 
site visits. (Officers will be able to 
recommend suggestions and 
help with this.) 
 

We can gather evidence from parents and schools. Officers 
have also begun a review of buildings across the borough to 
expand services and provide better support for families. 
 
We can also get technical information from local network 
providers.  I am also open to other suggestions that would 
help with this work. 

Co-optees / Technical 
advisors? 
Would the task and finish group 
benefit from having expert input 
such as an academic or local 
expert? 
 

BT and Vodaphone’s expert technical advice and support 
would be very helpful. 

Suggested timeframe 
Do you estimate / suggest that 
the investigation take 3, 6, 9 or 
12 months? Outline your 
suggested timetable for evidence 
gathering. 
 

At this stage it is difficult to say, I would estimate 6 – 9 
months. 

Equalities Impact 
Identify any equalities issues that 
might be applicable. 
 

 

Councillor(s) submitting the 
proposal 
Please list the names of the 
submitting councillor(s) 
 

Cllr Colin Elliott 

 

Page 22


	Agenda
	1 Confirmation of Chair
	2 Declarations of interest
	3 Scoping report
	03 Appendix A - proforma - 050721


